
 

1 
 

 Minutes 

 
 

MEETING: NIMDTA Board 

DATE: Tuesday 23 September 2025 

TIME: 10am 

VENUE: Boardroom, NIMDTA  

    

 
 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

1 Apologies 

 

 

1.1 None.   

 

2 Declarations of Interests – Items of Business 

 

 

2.1 None.  

 

 

Members: Mr D Wilson Chair 

 Mr H Graham  

H McPoland 

Member  

Member 

 Prof P McKeown Member 

   

In Attendance: Mr M McCarey Chief Executive 

 Prof C Harron Postgraduate Medical Dean & Director of Education 

 Mr A McClelland Senior Governance, IT & Facilities Manager  

 Ms P Black Senior Business Manager 

 Ms B Hendron Postgraduate Dental Dean 

 Ms R Campbell Senior Professional Support Manager 

 Dr L Parks Foundation Director 

 Ms Turner 

Dr P Leggett 

Senior HR Manager – Trainee Employment 

GP Director 

 Dr Smyth Director of Hospital Specialty and Professional 

Development 

 Ms Hughes Senior Education Manager 

 Ms B McGuinness Executive Assistant to CEO and PGMD 

 Ms G Kerr 

 

Committee Support Executive Officer 

   



 

2 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

3 Announcements 

 

 

3.1 Organisational Review 

Mr Wilson confirmed he continues to have weekly meetings with 

PA Consulting, with feedback to date positive and notably excellent 

engagement rates. A draft report is currently being prepared.  

 

Mr Wilson stressed this is a Board led initiative, thus Board 

Members will review reports initially, before deciding how 

information should be shared more widely. 

 

 

3.2 Accountability Meeting  

Mr Wilson noted an update was provided at the recent Board 

Workshop. A very positive meeting took place, DoH are very keen 

to see the outcome of the Organisational Review.   

 

 

4 

 

Minute of Meeting  

4.1 The Minutes of 17 June 2025 were approved. 

 

 

5 Matters Arising 

 

 

5.1 The Action List of 17 June 2025 was noted.  

 

 

 

5.2 33.0 - 7.2 Cardiothoracic Surgery (17.06.25)  

Please see Confidential Item C1.0 below.  

 

 

 

5.3 34 - 9.4 DCT Programme (19.09.25) 

Dr Hendron confirmed an update is included within her report.   

 

 

5.4 36.0 - 13.6 Update on SAS Development Fund (17.06.25) 

Professor Harron confirmed that a six-monthly update will be 

provided.  

 

 

6 Update from Committee Chairs 

 

 

6.1 Audit and Risk Committee 17 June 2025 

The minutes of 17 June 2025 were approved.  

 

 

 

6.2 Governance, Resources and Performance Committee on 02 

September 2025 

 



 

3 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

The minutes of 02 September 2025 were approved.  

 

7 Report from the Chief Executive  

 

 

7.1 Members noted the report from Mr McCarey, Chief Executive.  

 

 

7.2 Report To Those Charged With Governance (RTTCWG) 

Mr McCarey confirmed the final report will be presented to the 

October Audit and Risk Committee, noting the positive report.  

 

Mr Wilson commended NIMDTA staff for their work to achieve such 

a clean report, which shows NIMDTA is very well managed in this 

area.  

 

 

 

 

 

7.3 Allocation Letters 

Mr McCarey advised Members of Allocation letters received to date 

and the requirement for further letters to be received from DoH 

before finalisation of budgets.  

 

Mr Wilson asked if additional funds are sought during monitoring 

rounds. Ms Black confirmed this is done consistently.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.4 HSC Reset Plan 

Mr McCarey drew attention to the enclosed HSC Reset Plan. 

Attendees discussed the requirement for reform and change across 

the HSC, recognising that opportunities outside of NIMDTA to 

deliver better outcomes should not be missed.  

 

Attendees discussed NIMDTA’s unique position given trainees 

impact many first interactions with HSC and the communication 

avenues this provides across primary and secondary care settings.  

 

Mr Wilson requested NIMDTA Strategic Plans are reviewed in light 

of the Reset Plan and necessary amendments made. Attendees 

agreed this should be done at a Workshop. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ms Kerr  

7.5 Resources 

Mr McCarey advised that he is meeting with Mr Swann MP later this 

week to discuss possible accommodation options within his 

constituency.  

 



 

4 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

 

7.6 Terms and Conditions on Appointment to NIMDTA  

Members requested a Remuneration Committee is scheduled to 

discuss further.  

 

Mr McCarey and Mr McPoland committed to meet to review 

documents in advance of the Committee.  

 

 

Ms Kerr 

 

 

Mr McCarey 

Mr McPoland 

 

8 Report from the Postgraduate Medical Dean / Director of 

Education  

 

 

8.1 Members noted the report from the Postgraduate Medical Dean / 

Director of Education.  

 

 

8.2  Foundation 

Professor Harron congratulated Dr Parks and her team on the 

successful expansion of the Foundation programme intake.  

 

Professor Harron advised that 4 Nation meetings are taking place 

regarding recruitment to foundation, with outcomes requiring 

ministerial approval in all nations. Impacts including expanding 

Medical School output, changes to financial outlook, changes to 

approach and complexities around international applicants are 

amongst those being considered. Professor Harron noted her 

concerns that given the reliance on national recruitment, decisions 

made by larger nations will impact NIMDTA.  

 

Dr Parks highlighted that non-UK graduate numbers appear to 

have plateaued, while UK medical school graduate numbers 

continue to increase.   

 

Ms Campbell joined the meeting.  

 

Attendees discussed the challenges presented by the ongoing 

trend of high withdrawal rates for RoI trainees.  

 

Dr Parks recognised that this yearhas been very successful with all 

rotas filled and an overall reduction in the number of withdrawals. 

Attendees recognised that prioritisation will have a more significant 

 



 

5 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

negative impact on NI than England, due to the Barnett calculation 

of the NI share of national eligibility output. Dr Parks noted her 

concern that next year’s projected NI Medical School output of 384, 

plus the Barnett formula allocation may be too high for NIMDTA to 

manage.  

 

Professor McKeown explained the RoI Medical School Model for 

attendees, noting it is likely further expansion will be seen.  

 

Mr Graham asked if there is an overall workforce plan for Northern 

Ireland. Professor Harron advised that there is in theory, but 

NIMDTA have lost the connection on where trainees go after 

Foundation and highlighted the need to also consider service 

provision. Dr Leggett stressed the importance of monitoring if 

trainees remain in Northern Ireland when they qualify, noting the 

considerable data held by NIMDTA which is provided to DoH for 

workforce planning purposes.   

 

8.3 Speciality 

Attendees discussed workforce planning challenges. Professor 

Harron confirmed she continues to raise these issues with DoH 

colleagues and advised of an upcoming consultation which will 

require 4 Nation ministerial approval.  

 

Attendees discussed the importance of identifying trainees who 

wish to make a long-term career in Northern Ireland, recognising 

that data on those who express an interest at Foundation entry 

point seems to get diminish at specialty level. Attendees agreed 

that work is required to empower careers utilising this data.  

 

Dr Smyth noted that some larger specialities are moving to national 

recruitment due to increasing numbers and the lack of internal 

infrastructure to deliver this locally. 

 

8.4 GP 

Professor Harron highlighted that GP trainees remain outside of 

SLE, confirming she has raised this at the Bi-lateral meeting with 

DoH.  

 

Mr Wilson asked what needs to change to allow GP trainees to 

move to SLE. Mr McCarey advised that NIMDTA currently do not 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

6 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

have the legislative power to move GP trainees. Ms Turner 

confirmed this was previously investigated following pressure from 

the BMA, but remains outside the scope of SLE until such times as 

DoH commissioned this work. Ms Turner noted GP trainee 

employment was never included in the initial rollout of SLE, thus 

significant work is required before any moves can be made, 

particularly around the additional structures and resourcing 

required. Work has begun on a new GP Contract which would also 

be required, consultation will also be needed with all GP practices.  

 

Mr Wilson requested a paper be prepared for Board Members 

outlining:  

 

• NIMDTA’s ability to take on this work,  

• the resources required,  

• risks involved, 

• contractual requirements, and 

• Other identified issues. 

 

Dr Leggett acknowledged help to date from Ms Turner, recognising 

that this is a significant piece of work. Dr Leggett highlighted his 

concerns for the GP training programme, particularly in relation to 

challenges arising from the current situation, unique to Northern 

Ireland, whereby GP Trainers are the employers of the Trainees 

placed in their practice. This means that as well as being the 

employer, the GP Trainer is also their educational and clinical 

supervisor. Dr Leggett felt that this employment arrangement 

potentially places GP Trainers in a very difficult position and 

highlighted that this would be resolved if the GP Trainees remained 

the employees of SLE throughout their training as is the case for all 

other Nimdta Trainees. 

 

Mr McCarey stressed that NIMDTA do not currently have the power 

or resource to do this work and this should be communicated to 

the sector, along with assurance that NIMDTA see the issues and 

are taking actions within our remit to address these.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Professor 

Harron 

Dr Leggett 

Ms Turner   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.5 Professional Support and Wellbeing  

 

 

 



 

7 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

Professor Harron noted the increase in help requests due to higher 

international trainee numbers. Business Planning will need to be 

included how this higher demand is met.   

 

Mr Wilson stated he would like to look at New to Northern Ireland 

(N2NI) work outside of today’s meeting, including the increase to 

Visa sponsorships.  

 

 

Professor 

Harron  

Ms Campbell 

8.7 Confidential 

See Confidential Item C2.0.  

  

 

9 Report from the Postgraduate Dental Dean 

 

 

9.1 Dental Course Booking Platform 

Dr Hendron provided an overview for new Members on the 

requirement for a new Courses and Events booking system, 

highlighting that the Dental budget will be impacted due to a 

period of no courses. Dr Hendron confirmed that the new system is 

now live and can be used by other teams across NIMDTA if 

required.  

 

Dr Hendron noted the success of this project has been a joint effort 

between the Dental Team and BSO ITS.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.2 Block Grant Monitoring 

Dr Hendron advised of a new requirement to report on Foundation 

Dentist activity, highlighting her concerns that NIMDTA is charged 

with facilitating training, and cannot be involved in the monitoring 

of service provision. Dr Hendron confirmed she is happy to collect 

data, however does not consider it would be appropriate to be 

responsible for service monitoring.  

 

Mr Graham noted this development is concerning and could result 

in many difficulties.  

 

 

10 Financial Report  

 

 

10.1 Members noted the report from Ms Black, Senior Business 

Manager.  

 

 



 

8 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

10.2 Ms Black advised that since writing of the paper, Month 5 reporting 

has been completed with little change. Month 6 priorities will 

include reviewing recruitment.   

 

Ms Black highlighted that the Contract Report is presented in a new 

format following audit feedback, with a focus on contracts being 

managed locally.  

 

 

10.3 Post Approvals 

The following posts were approved:  

 

• Lead Hospital Dentistry EBC.41  

• TPD - Academic Training EBC.41 

 

 

11 Risk Management and Performance Report   

 

11.1 Corporate Risk Register  

Mr McClelland advised of a new refined template for departmental 

risk registers, adding that a review of wording has also just begun.  

 

Mr McPoland queried if Risk 6 Staff in Post (SiP) Reports is now an 

issue rather than a risk. Members discussed, noting this remains on 

Internal Audit reports. Ms Turner stated she is very happy to stand 

over the robustness of NIMDTA procedures and controls. Members 

concluded this should be held as a risk until fully resolved.  

 

 

12 Strategic Items for Approval 

 

 

12.1 Mid-Year Assurance Statement 

Mr McClelland advised the Mid-Year Assurance Statement will be 

signed off by the Chief Executive post 30 September 2025, with any 

amendments in the interim highlighted to Board Members in 

advance. 

 

APPROVED.  

 

 

13 Strategic Items for Information 

 

 

13.1 SLE August 2025 Rotation Report   



 

9 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

Members asked if there were any issues with the latest rotation. Ms 

Turner advised that Encompass remains an issue. Mr Wilson asked if 

this is sustainable. Ms Turner advised that the volume of enquiries 

received is not sustainable.   

 

Ms Turner recognised SLE benefitted from excellent staff cover over 

the summer months. 

 

Mr Wilson asked if there is a set response time for enquiries. Ms 

Turner advised there was a KPI but this was very difficult to 

manage. A CRM system would be massively helpful as many of the 

recorded number could be related, but this cannot be monitored at 

present.  

 

Mr McCarey recognised the difficulties raised by misleading 

communications in relation to encompass, which need to be 

addressed to avoid reputational damage to NIMDTA.  

 

Mr McCarey noted that SLE is consistently expanding its brief. Mr 

Wilson stressed that the PPE should include reference to this.  

 

Professor McKeown asked if exit interviews are being held with staff 

leaving, given high turnover. Ms Turner confirmed this is done, 

initially stress and workload were an issue, now staff are leaving to 

take promotional opportunities. Ms Turner added that former staff 

are returning for short term opportunities which is reflective of a 

good working environment. Mr Wilson noted that NIMDTA are 

being encouraged by Internal Audit to improve data capture 

around staff leaving.  

 

Mr Wilson commended the SLE team on their success.  

 

13.2 NIMDTA Enhanced Induction Event – 14 August 2025 

Ms Campbell provided an overview.  

 

Members noted the need to monitor wider issues around 

immigration.  

 

 

 

13.3 Foundation FY1 Intake and Induction Day 31 July 2025 

Noted. Dr Parks confirmed this was covered in earlier discussions.  

 

 



 

10 
 

 

Ref 

 

Item 

 

 

Action 

13.4 Clinical Education Day - 12 September 2025 

This item was covered within the Post Graduate Medical Dean and 

Director of Education’s report.   

 

 

13.5 Academic Dental Training 

Noted. Mr Wilson asked Dr Hendron to pass on Board thanks to 

those who wrote the engaging and informative articles.  

 

 

13.6 Medical and Dental Locum Reduction Group 

Noted. Mr McCarey committed to reflect on the requirement for 

this at the next update.  

 

Dr Parks asked if there any way of knowing how much was spent on 

Locums e.g. during the year there was a 15% vacancy rate at F1. 

Professor Harron advised this data is not readily available. Hopefully 

workshops will progress processes to allow Trusts to monitor 

spend.  

 

Dr Hendron asked if there is dental representation at DoH, as there 

is no reference to dental in the paper. Mr McCarey advised there 

has been some discussion, but no decision. This has been raised 

with DoH colleagues. Professor Harron stated this only relates to 

secondary care.  

 

 

Mr McCarey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Other Items 

 

 

14 Correspondence 

None.  

 

 

15 Any Other Business 

Mr Graham recommended attendees read the Safety Culture 

Framework for Northern Ireland.  

 

 

All 

16 Close of Meeting – Next Meeting Date, etc. 

25 November 2025 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

11 
 

     
…………………………………………….. 

NIMDTA Chair 
 
 

25.11.25 
………………………….. 

Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




